
UNITED NATIONS 

(~) TRUSTEESHIP COUNCIL 
~mtJ? Twenty-second session 

~ OFFICIAL RECORDS 

CONTENTS 

Report of the Secretary-General on credentials 

Examination of conditions in the Trust Territory of 
Somaliland under Italian administration (continued): 
(i) Annual report of the Administering Authority for 

the year 1957; 
(ii) Petitions raising general questions· 

(iii) Report of the United Nations Visitfng Mission to 
Trust Territories in East Africa, 1957; 

(iv) Economic advancement of Somaliland under Italian 
adtninistration (General Assembly resolution 1206 
(XII)); 

(v) Report of the United Nations Advisory Council for 
the Trust Territory of Somaliland under Italian 
Administration 

~ 
283 

284 

287 

General debate (concluded) ••••••••••••••.•• 

Appointment of the Drafting Committee •••••••• 

Report of the United Nations Visiting Mission to Trust 
Territories in East Africa, 1957, on Somaliland under 
Italian administration (continued) • • • • • • • • • • • • 287 

Reports of the Committee on Rural Economic Develop-
ment of the Trust Territories (continued) • • • • • • . 287 

President: Mr. AlfredCLAEYS BOUUAERT (Belgium). 

Present: 

The representatives of the following States: Aus,. 
tr~l~a, Be.lgium, Burma·, China, France,. Guatemala, · 
Ha1b, India, Italy, New Zealand, Union of Soviet So-

. cialist Republics, United Arab Republic, United King
dom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United 
States of America. 

The representatives of the following specialized 
age~cies: International Labour Organisation; Food and 
Agnculture Organization of the United Nations· United 
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Or~niza
tion; World Health Organization. 

Report of the Secretary-General on credentials 
(T /1390 and Corr. 1 and Add. 1) 

[Agenda item 2] 
1. Mr. LOBANOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics) said that the only lawful representative of China 
in the United Nations, and in the Tru~teeship Council 
in particular, was the representative of the People's 
Republic of China. His delegation therefore proposed 
that the credentials of the person illegally occupying 
the seat of China in the Council should not be recog
nized and asked that they should be voted on separately. 

2. Mr. KIANG (China) said that the Government he 
represented in the Council Wa.s the only Chinese Gov
ernment which had issued from free elections and the 
only Government which could rightly speak for the 
Chinese people in the United Nations. 

3. Mr. JAIPAL (India), Mr. OSMAN (UnitedArabRe
public) and U THANT (Burma) stated that their re
spective Governments recognized only the Government 

283 

931 st Meeting 

Friday, 25 July 1958, 
at 3 p.m. 

NEW YORK 

of the People's Republic of China and that, in their 
view, only the representative of that Government was 
entitled to be seated in the Trusteeship Council. 

4. Mr. SEARS (United States of America) observed 
that the Secretary-General stated, in his report 
(T/1390 and Corr.l and Add.l), that he had found the 
credentials of all representatives in the Trusteeship 
Council to be in order. The Council ought logically, 
therefore, to vote on the report as a whole. Accord
ingly, he asked that the Soviet Union representative's 
proposal should be put to the vote in accordance with 
the provisions of rule 60 of the rules of procedure; 
his delegation would vote against the proposal for a 
separate vote on the credentials of a member. 

The Soviet Union proposal was rejected by 10 votes 
to 4. 

5. Mr. SEARS (United States of America) said that 
as the issue had been raised he felt compelled to re
call that the United States Government considered that 
the Government of the Republic of China was alone 
entitled to representation in the Trusteeship Council 
and in other United Nations bodies. 

.6. Mr. LOBANOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics) replied that his delegation wished to defend the 
legitimate rights of the great Chinese people headed 
by the People's Government of China and would spare 
no effort to secure recognition of and respect for those 
rights in all United Nations bodies • 

The Secretary-General's report (T/1390andCorr.1 
and Add.l) was adopted by 10 votes to none, with 4 
abstentions. 

7. Mr. JAIPAL (India) said that he had abstained iD. 
the vote on the report as a whole because his delega
tion considered that the credentials of representatives 
should be voted on separately, and because it had been 
unable to express its views on an important matter on 
which it believed a separate vote should be taken. 

B. Mr. LOBANOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics) said that he had abstained in the vote because the 
Secretary-General's report listed, as the representa
tive of China, a person who represented nobody. The 
legal representatives of China in all United Nations 
bodies could only be the representatives appointed by 
the Central People's Government of the People's Re
public of China. 

9, Mr. OSMAN (United Arab Republic) said that he 
had abstained because his delegation }:lad formal reser
vations about the credentials of one representative in 
the Council. 

10. Mr. KELLY (Australia) said that his delegation's 
vote was to be understood as having been cast in the 
light of the observations made by the Australian rep
resentative at the Council's twenty-first session when 
questions of credentials were under consideration. 

T/SR.931 



Examination of conditions In the Trust Territory of 
Somaliland under Italian administration (continued): 
(I) Annual report of the Administering Authority for 

the year 1957 (T /1388, T /1397, T /1398, T /L.858); 
(11) Petitions raising general questions (T /COM. 11 I 

L.298 to 303, T /PET.GEN/L.2, T /PET.11/L.26, 
T/PET.11/L.27); 

(ill) Report of the United Nations VIsiting Mission to 
Trust Territories In East Africa, 1957 (T /1344, 
T /1396); 

(lv) Economic advancement of Somali land under Ital
Ian administration (General Assembly resolution 
1206 (XII)); 

(v) Reportofthe United NationsAdvlsory Council for 
the Trust Territory of Somaliland under Italian 
Administration (T /1372) 

[Agenda items 3 (~, 4, 5, 15 and 17] 

At the invitation of the President, Mr. de Holte 
Castello (C_olombia) and Mr. Baradi (Philippines), 
representatives of States members of the United Na
tions Advisory Council for the Trust Territory of 
Somaliland under Italian Administration, and Mr. Gas
barri. special representative of the Administering 
Authority for the Trust Territory, took places at the 
Council table. 

GENERAL DEBATE (concluded) 

11. Mr. PLAJA (Italy) said that the Administering 
Authority and the Somali Government would give the 
most careful consideration to the observations and 
suggestions of members of the Council on the main 
problems that faced Somaliland as the date of its in
dependence approached. Three points in particular ap
peared to have attracted the Council's attention in the 
current year-the question of the frontier with Ethiopia, 
the question of elections and the Territory's economic 
development and the problem of external assistance for 
Somaliland after 1960. 

12. With regard to the first question, the Adminis-
. tering Authority and the Somali people shared the con
cern expressed by members of the Council, and in 
particular by the representative of the United States, 
at the lack of progress towards a solution of the fron
tier problem. There was no doubt that the future of the 
new Somali State would in large measure depend on its 
solution. The Administering Authority was confident 
that the statements made in that connexion by all dele
gations and by the members of the United Nations Ad
visory Council for the Trust Territory of Somaliland 
under Italian Administration would contribute to the 
early implementation of the General Assembly's reso
lutions on the subject. His delegation, for its part, 
earnestly hoped that, at its next session, the General 
Assembly would be able to note substantial progress 
towards a solution of the problem. In connexion with the 
frontier question, he wished to rectify a statement he 
had made at the 921st meeting that the occurrences in 
the Dolo area had had no sequel. He could now say that 
following that incident and other similar incidents, the 
Prime Minister of Somaliland, in his statement to the 
Legislative Assembly, had expressed the hope that the 
Ethiopian Government would agree to the proposal that 
a joint Somalo-Ethiopian commission should be appoin
ted to settle, with the assistance of a representative of 
the Advisory Council, the question of the location of the 
frontier at certain controversial points. That proposal 

had been submitted to the Ethiopian Government. The 
Somali Government hoped that the implementation of 
such a proposal would ensure the creation of the condi
tions necessary to the proper functioning of the arbitra
tion tribunal appointed to define the frontier between 
Ethiopia and Somaliland under Italian administration. 

13. Turning to the question of elections, he recalled 
that that question had caused a delay in the Territory's 
constitutional development. The Administering Au
thority was gratified to note that the Council appreci~ 
ated the difficulties involved. Most delegations ap
peared to agree that it would be inadvisable to make 
the holding of the elections contingent upon the taking 
of a new census. In that connexion, the representative 
of the Soviet Union had maintained that the Adminis
tering Authority had failed to foresee the difficulties 
of a population census and to face them accordingly. 
The Administering Authority, however, had always 
been fully aware of those difficulties; ithadproceeded 
to take a census in spite of the obstacles which it 
foresaw because it wanted to meet the recommenda
tions of the Council on that subject. The failur~ of the 
experiment had not been due to any lack of planning 
and organization, as the representative of the Soviet 
Union had suggested. In the present circumstances, 
the Administering Authority still thought that the 
present draft electoral law offered the best possible 
solution. It was its firm intention not to prolong the 
powers of the Legislative Assembly beyond the time 
strictly necessary to allow new political elections to 
be held in the spring of 1959. The Administering 
Authority was glad to note that it was supported in that 
stand by the members of the Advisory Council and by 
the members of the Trusteeship Council; it hoped that 
when the Trusteeship Council drafted its recommenda
tions on the subject it would be fully aware of the im
portance which they would have for the final deCision 
to be taken. 

284 

14. With reference to the draft electoral law, the 
representative of Haiti had expressed certain reser
vations concerning the proposed system of a single 
national constituency. That point had been carefully 
considered by the Somali Government, which thought 
that the system of a single constituency was pre
ferable to that of district constituencies because it 
enabled political parties with only a few members to 
combine the votes of their supporters and thus obtain 
the required minimum quota of votes more easily. 

15. The representative of Burma ilad mentioned at 
the 929th meeting the possibility of having United 
Nations observers at the elections. The Administering 
Authority had already thought of that poin~ and would 
give it the most careful consideration should such be 
the desire of the Somali authorities. 

16. Some members of the Council had referred to 
the question of the establishment of new local or
gans of self-government. That question could best be 
answered by referreing the members of the Council 
to the statement made by the representative of India, 
who had described the situation very well when he 
had pointed out that in a territory where tribal cus
toms were still firmly rooted the Administering Au
thority should be very cautious about establishing 
local organs of government which might upset the 
delicate political balance .that had been achieved with 
so much difficulty by the Administering Authority and 
the Somali Government. 



17. With respect to the Somalization of the civil ser
vice, many members of the Council had acknowledged 
the progress which the Administering Authority had 
made in that field. In that connexion, the representa
tive of the Soviet Union had spoken about the partici
pation of the Somali Government in international 
affairs. The Administering Authority's annual re
port U contained information on that point. He could 
further inform the Council that Mr. Hagi Farah Ali 
Omar would have contacts before returning home with 
the authorities of the European Common Market and 
with authorities at Bonn and Karachi concerning trade 
with Somalia. He would emphasize that Somalia's 
entire foreign trade had been in the hands of the 
Somali Government since 1958. 

18. The representative of the United Arab Republic, 
who was a member of the Advisory Council, had 
expressed the opinion that the delay in the Territory's 
constitutional development might prevent the termi- _ 
nation of the Trusteeship Agreement before 1960. He 
had added that the prolongation of the powers of the 
Legislative Assembly might be interpreted by the So
mali people as an effort on the part of the deputies 
to stay in office beyond their given mandate. Mr. Plaja 
said he could not share the views of the representa
tive of the United Arab Republic on those two points. 

19. The question of economic progress had rightly 
occupied an important place in the debates. The Ad
ministering Authority was grateful for the suggestions 
made by many members of the Council, but felt that 
some of them were hardly acceptable from a practical 
point of view. The question of aid to an independent 
Somalia, for example, was not a question of method 
but a practical question. Somalia was already aware 
of its future needs and its only problem was to find 
out where the necessary aid could be obtained. More
over, it was for the Somalis themselves to say what 
they wanted to do, and no attempt should be made to 
force the necessary decisions on them. Some members 
of the Council had expressed the view that it was inad
visable to establish a new committee or a special fund. 
The Administering Authority was in full agreement with 
that view. The technical assistance offered to Somalia 
by Italy in 1957 and the aid which was now so gener
ously promised by the United States of America and 
other countries constituted an approach which the 
Council ought not to discourage or even appear to dis
approve. Those questions were in any case the re
sponsibility of the Somali Government alone, which 
would not fail to keep the Council informed of the 
course of events. Furthermore, the Administering 
Authority interpreted General Assembly resolution 
1206 (XII) as meaning that the Council should base its 
recommendations on the views of the Administering 
Authority and the Somali Government, and it thought 
that the Somali Government should be given the time 
to consider the question and reach the necessary con· 
clusions. 

20. With respect to the system of taxation, to whicl. 
the representative of Australia had referred, it was 
the intention of the Somali Government to broaden 

11 Rapport du Gouvernement I italien 3.1 'Assemblee generale 
des Nations Unies sur 11 administration de tutelle de la 
Somalie, 1957, Ministry of Foreign Affairs (Rome, Istituto 
Poligrafico dello Stato P. V., 1958). Transmitted to mem
bers of the Trusteeship Council by a note of the Secretary
General (T/1388). 

285 

the basis of taxation so as to include, if possible, all 
the nomads who were benefiting from public services. 
However, that was not merely a question of legisla
tion. No fiscal measure could succeed unless the 
people affected were first convinced that they had to 
contribute their share to the Territory's revenue. 
With regard to the figure of 11,000 persons which, 
according to the representative of Australia, was the 
total number of taxpayers paying directtaxes, it should 
be noted that the figure included only those taxpayers 
who paid income tax and not those subject to the 
shamba and hut taxes, which affected approximately 
100,000 taxpayers. As a result, the total direct taxes 
would amount to 15 per cent of the Territorial budget 
revenues in 1961, as opposed to 12 per cent in 1957. 

21. With respect to the Territorial budget, some dele
gations had suggested a reduction of expenses. As was 
proper, the financial policy of the Somali Government 
was based on a desire for economy, but it should be 
realized that there was very little chance that the 
expenses of the Somali State would decrease after 
1960. After that date, the Somali Government would 
have to take over all the expenses connected with 
foreign relations, air communications, and the like 
which were now met by the Administering Authority. 

22. With reference to Somalia's association with 
the European Common Market, the representative of 
the Soviet Union had expressed the view that that asso
ciation was not in the interest of the Territory. Accord
ing to him, the purpose of the European Common 
Market Treaty was to satisfy interests that were 
entirely foreign to those of the Trust Territory. 
Mr. Plaja said he would refrain from commenting on 
that view and would limit himself to referring the 
representative of the Soviet Union to the decisions 
taken on that subject by the Council of Ministers of 
the Somali Government, which were quoted in the 
supplementary information submitted by the Admin
istering Authority (T/1397). 

23. In agriculture, the Somali Government :vas pur
suing its policy of diversification of pro.ductwn. New 
emphasis was being given to the production of cotton, 
oil seeds, bananas and the other main crops of t~e 
Territory. Several delegations had thought that Somalia 
should develop its commerce with traditional trade 
areas. The Somali Government was aware of the need 
for such trade, and real, although slow, progress was 
being made along those lines. 

24. Lastly, the representative of Chinaha~suggested 
the creation of a Somali agency for ec?no~IC dev?lop-

ent which would administer the outside aid furmshed 
: Somalia. The suggestion, which had already b~en 

d by the International Bank for ReconstructiOn 
ma e t" ad and Development (T/1296), was an interes mg one n 
would be submitted to the Somali Government. 

25. Turning to the question of social advance~ent, 
he admitted that much remained to be done m the 
fields of medicine and education. However, that was 
not merely a question of funds. It was neces.sary to 
create institutions which an independent Somalia could 
afford to maintain and which the Somali people could 
fully utilize. 

Some delegations had been alarmed by the de
~~~ase of medical personnel in the public heal~.se~
vices. As the special representative had exp me ' 



that decrease was only temporary and the necessary 
steps had already been taken to remedy the situation. 

27. The representatives of France and Guatemala had 
been disturbed by the slow progress made in educa
tion. He wished to assure them that the .authorities 
concerned were giving that problem close and con
tinuous consideration and that the Territory's existing 
educational institutions were already capable of re
ceiving a larger number of pupils. The chief diffi
culty was to persuade parents to enrol their children 
in the schools and to induce the local authorities to 
supervise school attendance. It was a problem that 
could not be solved overnight. A comparison had been 
made between the number of school enrolments and 
the number of children of school age. It would be 
better to compare the number of school enrolments 
with the number of children of school age who were 
really able to attend school, which was not more 
than 30,000. On the basis of the latter comparison, 
the number of school enrolments had increased by 
22 per cent. With respect to the education of the chil
dren of nomads, the Somali Government would un
doubtedly reconsider the question in the light of the 
discouraging results of the experiment it had con
ducted in collaboration with the United Nations Edu
cational, Scientific and Cultural Organization. 

28. Mr. FARAH ALl OMAR (Italy), speaking as 
Minister of Economic Affairs of Somalia expressed 
the Somali Government's gratitude for the care with 
which the Trusteeship Council had .considered the 
situation in Somaliland and for the generous and ef
fective manner in which it had contributed to the 
Territory's civic and political advancement. Somali
land now had confidence in the future and wished to 
take its place in the community of nations. 

29. In the political realm, the most important prob
lem was unquestionably that of holding elections. All 
members of the Council had expressed the hope that 
a solution to the problem would quickly be found and 
the Territory's constitutional development would not be 
unduly delayed. The Somali Government was deter
mined to hold elections as soon as possible, provided 
that the system employed was truly democratic in 
nature. Preceding the announcement of the extension 
of the Legislative Assembly's term a report had been 
issued which stated that any further extension would 
depend on the opinion expressed by the Administering 
Authority and the Trusteeship Council as to whether 
a new census should be taken before elections were 
held. The Somali Government and Assembly would 
give the utmost consideration to the wishes of the 
Trusteeship Council. As to expanding the powers of 
the district councils and establishing regional coun
cils, the Somali Government thought that it should act 
with the greatest caution and continue to study the 
matter. 

30. He thanked all the delegations which had stressed 
the need for rapid completion ·of the arbitration tri
bunal provided for by General Assembly resolution 
1213 (XII) so that it could finish its work in due time 
and the General Assembly could make a decision 
thereon at its next session; if a fair and honourable 
solution was not reached by 1960, the development 
of Somaliland in all areas would be seriously jeopar
dized. 

31. The Trusteeship Council had noted an improve
ment in the economic and financial situation in the 
Territory. In that connexion, the Somali Government 
wished to express its gratitude to the Administering 
Authority and to the United States Government for 
the technical and financial assitance they had provided; 
it also thanked the United Nations Advisory Council 
and the Indian and Guatemalan delegations for having 
recommended the establishment of a special United 
Nations fun to enable Somaliland to meet its financial 
requirements after 1960, and the delegation of the 
United Arab Republic for having stated its Govern
ment's willingness to take part in establishing such 
a fund. 

32. He read out a letter sent by the Prime Minister 
of Somalia to the United States Consul General at 
Mogadiscio, expressing thanks for the generous offer 
of assistance made by the United States Government. 
Somaliland would keep the Trusteeship Council in
formed of the results of the conversations itwas cur
rently conducting with Italy. It would, in consultation 
with the Administering Authority and with the help_ of 
experts, periodically review its requireme?t~, which 
at present were estimated at nearly $5 million, a~d 
would neglect no opportunity to reduce its expen?I
tures and increase its revenue with a view to keepmg 
necessary aid to a minimum. In that connexion, he 
wished to recall that the International Bank for Re:~n
struction and Development had expressed the opmwn 
that Somaliland should recieve immediate assurance 
of future aid since if an atmosphere of security were 
not created ' the ~eed for financial aid would only 
increase as' a result of the lack of new investments 
and perhaps even the withdrawal of capital already 
invested. The Somali Government therefore welcomed 
the statements of the United States and Italian Govern
ments, which would restore confidence and help stimu
late present and future investments. 

33. On the basis of the Bank's recommendations, ~e 
Somali Government felt that the Territory'~ soc~a~ 
development had to be based on a prudent fi?ancmt 
policy. He assured the Guatemalan ~ep~es~n~ahve_thad 
the treatment of prisoners in the district Jails r~Is~ 
no problems as the scheme involved only a few mdi
viduals who 'were being employed in the mai?tenance 
of public buildings in order to provide them With ~~me 
diversion and keep them in good physical condition. 
In formulating plans for the future, the Somali Govern
ment would take into account representativ.es' s~gges
tions regarding the development of educatiOn, _mclud
ing that of the nomads, and of health and social ser
vices. However, it would draw up such progra~me.s 
with due regard for its financial resources, whiC~ It 
would try to increase through a suitable fiscal P?hcy • 
careful administration and wise allocation of available 
funds. 

286 

34. In concluding, he thanked the United Nations f~r 
having prepared his people for independ~nce. and paid 
a tribute to the work of Mr. Enrico Anziloth, form.er 
Administrator of Somaliland, who had alwayshadfaith 
in the Territory's future. 

35. Mr. DE HOLTE CASTELLO (Colombia) re.served 
the right in view of certain observations which had 
been made, to make a statement on behalf of the 
Advisory Council. 



APPOINTMENT OF THE DRAFTING COMMITTEE 

36. The PRESIDENT suggested that the Drafting 
Committee for the Trust Territory of Somaliland under 
Italian Administration should be composed of repre
sentatives of Australia, India, the United Arab Repub
lic and the United States of America. 

It was so decided. 

Report of the United Nations Visiting Mission to Trust 
Territories In East Africa, 1957, on Somaliland 
under Italian administration (T /1344, T /l.869) (con
tinued) ---

[Agenda item 5] 

37. In connexion with agenda item 5, Mr. FELD 
(United States of America) submitted a draft resolu
tion (T/L.869) concerning all the reports of the United 
Nations Visiting Mission to Trust Territories in East 
Africa, 1957 (T/1344, T/1345, T/1346). 

The draft resolution was adopted unanimously. 

Mr. de Holte Castello (Colombia) and Mr. Baradi 
(Philippines), representatives of States members of the 
United Nations Advisory Council for the Trust Terri
tory of Somaliland under Italian Administration, and 
Mr. Gasbarri, special representative fo the Adminis
tering Authority for the Trust Territory, withdrew. 

The meeting was suspendedat4.15p.m.andresumed 
at 4.45 p.m. 

Reports of the Committee on Rural Economic Develop
ment of the Trust Territories (T /1399, T /L.870) 
(continued)* 

[Agenda item 9] 

38. Sir Andrew COHEN (United Kingdom), Chair
man of the Committee on Rural Economic Development 
of the Trust Territories, reviewed the main points 
in the two annexes totheCommittee'sreport(T/1399). 
Annex I, which was a summary of information pro
vided by the Secretariat and took into account the 
comments of the Administering Authority, was a study 
of population, land utilization and land tenure in New 
Guinea. Annex 11 contained draft observations and 
conclusions. 

39. Speaking as the United Kingdom representative, 
he then enumerated the amendments to the Commit
tee's report proposed by his delegation (T/L.870). 
The most important concerned, first of all, paragraph 
14 of annex I and paragraph 1 of annex 11, which should 
state that there was no land shortage in the Territory 
at present; and, secondly, paragraph 11 of annex 11, 
which did not take into account the information pro
vided by the special representative on alienations of 
land in the most heavily populated areas. 

40. As to the suggestion, made by the Indian repre
sentative at the 899th meeting, during the discussion 
of the Committee's reportonRuanda-Urundi (T/1369), 
that the Committee should formulate general prin
ciples for application in matters concerning land, he 
thought that the members of the Committee should 
study it carefully at the next session of the Council, 
when he hoped the Council would have the observa
tions of the United Nations Food and Agriculture 
Organization. 

* Resumed from the 890th meeting. 

287 

41. Mr. LOBANOV (Union. of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics) said that the USSR delegation had been disap
pointed by the Committee's report. The Committee 
did not seem to have discharged t~e main respon
sibility assigned to it under General Assembly reso
lution 1208 (XII), for it had failed to give proper atten
tion to the subjects of land alienation and agricultural 
instruction. Its observations and conclusions were 
contrary to the needs of the New Guinea Territory 
and the interests of the indigenous population; they 
did not take into account the facts set out in the de
scriptive section of the report, which showed that 
the position of the indigenous inhabitants was diffi
cult, that their land continued to be alienated and that 
agricultural methods remained primitive. Paragraph 
6 of annex I of the report in fact stated that the poor 
state of the people's health might be one of the causes 
of low productivity. As a result of poor hygienic con
ditions, malaria, tuberculosis and other diseases were 
taking a great toll among the people. The newly dis
covered disease known as kuru was said to be caused 
by nutritional deficiencies, among other factors. 

42. Moreover, not a single agricultural school had 
been established in the Territory for children who 
completed their primary education. But it was the 
question of land that deserved the closest attention. 
It appeared from the Com.mittee's report (annex I, 
para. 11) that the total area of land cultivated by the 
indigenous inhabitants to provide for their needs was 
about 1. 5 million acres at present, while the total 
area of alienated or leased land was about 1. 7 million 
acx:es. In some districts, the shortage of land was 
becoming acute. Furthermore, the figures cited in 
paragraph 17 of annex I showed that the non-indige
nous population was producing much more copra, 
cocoa beans and coffee than the indigenous population. 
It was thus clear that the latter did not hold the key 
positions in the Territory's agriculture. 

43. Nevertheless, in its recommendations the Com
mittee sought to justify the present situation and en
couraged the Administering Authority to continue its 
existing policy. In paragraph 3 of the draft observa
tions and conclusions (annex 11), it even commended the 
Administering Authority for the measures it had taken. 
Instead of proposing that the alienation of land should 
be brought to an end and that the land already alienated 
should returned to the indigenous inhabitants, the 
Committee in fact endorsed present practices. It could 
therefore be said that the report contained no signifi
cant recommendations designed to defend the interests 
of the indigenous population but it had many unjusti
fied expressions of praise addressed to the Adminis
tering Authority. The USSR delegation could not ap
prove the Committee's attitude, and it reserved the 
right to speak on the various paragraphs of the report 
when they were put to the vote. 

44. Mr. KELLY (Australia) invited the representative 
of the World Health Organization to offer the Council 
his observations on the words "One possible cause 
may be nutritional deficiencies", occurring at the 
beginning of the ninth sentence in paragraph 6 of 
annex I of the report. He further observed that this 
first part of the sentence clearly related to the newly 
discovered kuru disease; the remainder of the sen
tence which did not relate to that disease, seemed 
to be' a statement of general application in which the 

J 



Administering Authority would find difficulty in con
curring. 

45. Dr. SACKS ~orld Health Organization) said that 
the Di~ector of tlie Waiter and Eliza Hall Research 
Institute at Melbourne had recently reported that the 
disease called kuru was probably due to a toxic cause 
or to a degeneration of genetic or hereditary origin. 
Nutritional deficiency had-been considered a possible 
cause of the disease but there were good reasons for 
continuing research in that field. In any case, as was 
noted earlier in paragraph 6, malnutrition had been 
one of the chief causes of deaths in Administration 
hospitals in 1956-1957. Further in the paragraph, 
there was a statement that the nutritional standard of 
the population was rising, but that there was in certain 
areas an insufficiency of first class protein in the diet 
leading to malnutrition. 

16. Sir Andrew COHEN (United Kingdom) said that 
tn his opinion, Dr. Sacks' comment might be taken a~ 
·1. criticism of both the substance and the drafting of 
paragraph 6: the sentence cited by the Australian 
representative would duplicate not quite accurately 
two other sentences in the same paragraph. In those 
circumstances, it might perhaps best be deleted. 

47. Mr. RASGOTRA (India) said that, although the 
rep.ort unfortunately failed to reflect some of its past 
recommendations, the Indian delegation was neverthe
less prepared to vote for the text as it stood. The 
representative of the United Kingdom had proposed 
some amendments (T/L.870), however, and the Indian 
delegation might not be in a position to vote for all 
of them. It would therefore request a separate vote 
on each amendment. 

48. Mr. KELLY (Australia) said that the Committee 
had done its best to produce a report which would 
factually reflect the present conditions in the Terri
tory. He recalled that on page 87 of its annual re
port Ythe Administering Authority had stated that in 
all areas the people had sufficient land for their re
quirements and food was plentiful. If from time to 
time, in isolated areas, slight seasonal shortages 
came into existence they were detected and remedied 
by the Administering Authority. 

49. With respect to land utilization, he wished to 
clarify the word "alienation". In Australia that word 
was used ordinarily to refer to the sale of public lands 
to private persons. In the United Nations the word 
seemed to mean primarily the transfer of land in fee 
simple from indigenous inhabitants to non-indigenous 
inhabitants. Practically all the limited amount of the 
land now held in fee simple in New Guinea had been 
acquired before Australia had taken over responsi
bility for the administration of the Territory. Since 
then, the Administration had acquired only l~mited 
amounts of land, not always from the indigenous inha
bitants; often, the land in question had been unoccupied 
and unclaimed. In some ~ases, the Administration 
leased the lands to non-indigneous inhabitants for thirty 
or ninety-nine years but no indefinite or perpetual 
leases :were ever granted. As used in the Committee' s_ 

'lJ Commonwealth of Australia, Report to the General 
Assembly of the United Nations on the Administration of the 
Territory of New Guinea from 1st July, 1956, to 3oth June, 
1957 (Canberra, A. J. Arthur, Commonwealth Government 
Printer). Transmitted to members of the Trusteeship 
Council by a note of the Secretary-General (T/1375). 

report, the word "alienation" really referred to the 
transfer to the public authorities of lands which in 
many instances were unowned, unoccupied and unuti
lized. When the objectives laid down by the United 
Nations Charter had been attained, those lands would 
form part of the public patrimony of the indigenous 
inhabitants. 

50. The Administering Authority was proud of its 
record in the matter of land in the Territory of New 
Guinea. It was true, as the representative of the 
Soviet Union had remarked, that certain diseases 
still took their toll in New Guinea, that many inhabi
tants were illiterate and that much had yet to be done 
in the field of public health and education. But it should 
be noted that it was the Administering Authority that 
had discovered the presence of thosediseasesandwas 
doing its best to eliminate them; similarly, it was the 
Administering Authority that had initiated a Territory
wide campaign for primary education and for higher 
education as well. 

51. The representative of the Soviet Union had pointed 
out that, so far as the production of cash crops was 
concerned the productivity of non-indigenous inhabi
tants was 'greater than that of indigenous inhabitants. 
However, bearing in mind that only a short time a~o 
they had been living in the most primitive econom1c 
and social conditions the indigenous inhabitants should 
be congratulated on 'the progress they had achieved. 
Moreover, the Trusteeship Council had frequently 
asked the Administering Authority to develop the eco
nomic capacity of the Territory so that it should ~ot 
be indefinitely dependent on grants from the Au~trallan 
Treasury. The most effective way of reac~mg that 
goal was to ensure that potentially productive lands 
were exploited under appropriate supervision and that 
the indigenous inhabitants received for tha~ ~urp~se 
all the help they desired from the Admm1stermg 
Authority. There was no reason to deplore the pro
ductivity of non-indigenous inhabitants. 

52. The representative of the Soviet Union had shown 
concern at the figures in paragraph 11 of anne~ I ?f 
the Committee's report. However, those figures mdl
cated that holdings actually being farmed by non
indigenous inhabitants accounted for less than 300,000 
acres of the area of 3,161,860 acres which the Com
mittee's report described as the utilized area, but 
many of those 3 million odd acres were not being us~d 
for arable cultivation at the present time. Of the Terri
tory's afforested area of 42 million acres, the area 
actually being commercially exploited for forestry 
amounted to only 180 000 acres. Of the Territory's 
total land area of 59 520 000 acres, only a relatively 
small portion was ~ow being used. The indigenous 
inhabitants were free to acquire without licence the 
timber they needed from the 42 million acres of 
afforested land. In no densely populated section of the 
Territory was a single acre of arable land alie~ated 
from the indigenous inhabitants. In those areas allena
tions of non-arable land were effected only for resi
dential, business and mission leases and for Admin
istration purposes. 

53. He was not in a position to confirm the accuracy 
of the statements on land utilization attributed in the 
report (annex I, para. 14) to Territory officials and 
to the Minister of State for Territories. As his dele
gation took the view that it would be unwise for the 
Council to incorporate in its reports and documents 

288 



unverified and unauthenticated press reports, any vote 
his delegation might cast could not be taken as imply
ing anything as to the accuracy of the three statements 
quoted by the Committee. 

54. Mr. LOBANOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub
lics) said, in reply to the observations of the Austr;t
lian representative, that the Administering Authority 
should not be content with discovering the presence of 
diseases among the indigenous inhabitants; it should 
also do away with the causes of those diSeases. 

55. He had nothing to add regarding the productivity 
of non-indigenous inhabitants in cash crops. But the 
indigenous inhabitants, about 1.3 million in all, owned 
less land than did the 14,000 non-indigenous persons 
in the Territory. One million seven hundred thousand 
acres were held by the Administration or by its les
sees. Those were the features that the delegation of the 

289 

Litho. in U.N. 

Soviet Union found disturbing. What was the realexpla-. 
nation for the fact that the key positions in the farm
ing areas of New Guinea were all in the hands of a few 
individuals? The answer was simply that the persons 
who were thus favoured thrived. It was alleged that 
only 2 per cent ofthe total land area liad been alienated; 
but that was merely juggling with figures, since 70 per 
cent of the Territory was covered by forests and non
indigenous inhabitants exploited the forest resources 
as well. 

56. Lastly, the Australian representative had spoken 
about the practice of leasing lands. When the Govern
ment gave a 99-year lease of lands that did not belong 
to it that was surely "alienation"; it could not be 
cont~nded that there was any real difference between 
a 99-year lease and alienation in perpetuity. 

The meeting rose at 6.5 p.m. 

14756-0ctober 1958-2,250 




